
Mayer Community Center – Council Chambers - 413 Bluejay Avenue, Mayer, MN 55360 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday 
May 7, 2019 

6:30 PM 

1. Call the meeting to order.

2. Approval of the agenda.

3. Approval of the minutes from the March 5, 2019 Planning Commission meeting.

4. SITE PLAN REVIEW for a accessory storage structure to be located in the C/I
Commercial/Industrial District at 505 Shimmcor Street.

5. Next Meeting  - Tuesday, June 4,  2019

6. Commissioners Report

7. Adjournment.

1



City of Mayer 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, March 5, 2019 

 
Commission Members Present: Council Liaison Tice Stieve-McPadden, Commissioners Les 
Hahn, Michael Sommerfeld, Don Wachholz, Barney Johnson and Patty Lanting. 
 
Commission Members Absent: Chairperson Tom Stifter. 
 
Others Present:  Eliceo Salomon-Vasquez, Jerry Vlaminck and Mayor Mike Dodge. 
 
Staff Present: Planning Consultant John Anderson of Municipal Development Group, LLC 
             
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
Meeting called to order at 6:33 PM by former Vice-Chairperson Hahn. 
 
ADOPT AGENDA. 
A motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner Wachholz and seconded by 
Commissioner Johnson.  Motion carried 5/0. 
 
SWEARING IN OF NEW PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS. 
Planning Consultant Anderson read the oath of office to sear in new Planning Commission 
member Michael Sommerfeld. 
 
ELECTION OF THE CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON. 
A motion to elect Patty Lanting to the position of Vice-Chairperson was made by commissioner 
Johnson and seconded by Commissioner Hahn. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
A motion to elect Tom Stifter to the position of Chairperson was made by Vice-Chairperson 
Lanting and seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 
A motion to approve the January 2, 2019 Planning Commission minutes was made by 
Commissioner Hahn and seconded by Commissioner Johnson. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR A TEXT AMENDMENT TO TITLE XV: LAND USAGE, 
CHAPTER 152: ZONING, SECTION 152.003 DEFINITIONS AND CHAPTER 154 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT, SECTION 154.02(F) AND SECTION 154.08(A)(4) OF 
THE CITY OF MAYER MUNICIPAL CODE. 
At 6:39 PM Vice-Chairperson Lanting opened the public hearing. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson presented the text amendment and stated that these changes were 
needed after the City started to codify the City code and add the text amendments that were 
approved over the last three to four years. Two inconsistencies were found in the recently 
approved floodplain ordinance update and this text amendment is just a housekeeping item 
fixings those inconsistencies. 
 
Commissioner Hahn asked about the 400 square foot portion of the recreational vehicles and 
equipment definition. 

2



 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated that this language comes from the recommended language 
from the Minnesota DNR template. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Lanting closed the public hearing at 6:44 PM. 
 
A motion to recommend approval of the text amendment was made by Commissioner Johnson 
and seconded by Commissioner Hahn. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR AGAVE MEXICAN RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 421 ASH 
AVENUE. 
At 6:46 PM, Planning Consultant Anderson presented the information for the site plan review.  
He stated that the biggest issue is the off-street parking and how that should be configured and if 
the proposed number of stalls is enough off-street parking for this site and whether the parking 
area should be paved or not. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Lanting asked if any comments were received from the public. 
 
Planning Consultant Anderson stated no comments were received. 
 
Commissioner Hahn stated that he use to work in this building when it was a service station and 
garage and that the angled parking proposed on the north side of the building will not work and 
that those stalls will need to be perpendicular to the building. He also stated that at some point in 
the future, 5th Street could be upgraded to a urban section of roadway with curb and gutter. 
Commissioner Hahn presented a sketch that shows how the off-street parking could be configured 
on the property. 
 
A motion to recommend approval of the site plan was made by Commissioner Hahn and 
seconded by Commissioner Wachholz. The motion included changing condition number 6 to just 
require a trash dumpster to be located on site and to be accessible and adding the requirements for 
off-street parking such as waiving the paving of the parking area, revising the off-street parking 
layout to add a sidewalk on the south and/or west side of the building, to make the off-street 
parking on the north side of the building perpendicular and to move the handicapped stall to the 
north side of the building. Motion carried 5/0. 
 
NEXT MEETING. 
Next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, April 2, 2019.  
 
COMMISSIONERS REPORT. 
Commissioner Hahn stated that he expects Mn/DOT to upgrade and reconstruct State Highway 
25 north of County Road 30 and the regional trail this summer and that in 2020 he expects 
Mn/DOT to upgrade State Highway 25 south of County Road 30 and the regional trail and stated 
that the City should look into having this section upgraded with curb, gutter and sidewalks to a 
urban section of roadway to the south end of the City. 
 
ADJOUNRNMENT. 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wachholz and seconded by Commissioner Johnson to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:35 PM.  Motion carried 5/0. 

3



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 1 

 
 

Mayer Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

      April 24, 2019 
Accessory Storage Building Site Plan Review  

 
APPLICATION DATA 
 
Meeting Date:    May 7, 2019 
 
Applicant/Owner: Peter Johnson 
 
Address &  
PID Number: 505 Shimmcor Street  - 50.70000.90 
 
Legal Description: Lot 5, Block 2, Sell Commercial Industrial Park, Carver County, Minnesota. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
 
To recommend to the City Council to approve or deny a site plan review for an accessory storage building 
to be located at 505 Shimmcor Street. 
 
BACKGROUND DATA  
   
Future Land Use  
Classification: Both properties are designated Existing MUSA Infill/Redevelopment on the future land 

use map. The proposed designation in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan update is 
Industrial and the proposed accessory storage building is consistent with both 
designations.   

 
Zoning  
Classification: The site is located in the Sell Commercial Industrial Park and is zoned (C/I) 

Commercial/Industrial District. The following list shows the required and proposed 
minimum requirements for structures within the C/I district.  

 
C/I Commercial/Industrial Requirement Proposed 
Front yard setback:    30 feet  Over 180 feet 
Rear yard setback:    30 feet  30 feet 
Side yard setback:  20 feet  Over 20 feet both side yards 
Lot coverage:   85%  74.9% at full buildout 
Building Height:  40 feet  25 feet 

 
 The proposed use is storage, which is a permitted use in the C/I district. 
 
Comments  
Received:   No comments from the public have been received as of the date of the this memo. 
 
Background:   Plans have been submitted to construct an accessory building on property located in 

the Shimmcor industrial park. A site plan was previously approved for this property 
around 2005 which consisted of multiple buildings and paved access to the buildings. 
Two access points were proposed from Shimmcor Street, one near the north property 
line and one near the south property line. The southern access has been paved and 
pavement extends around the existing buildings on the south part of the property, while 
the northern access has curb in but is not paved at this time. 

 

4



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 2 

 The property currently consists of three existing storage buildings. One larger building 
in the center of the lot and two smaller buildings located just north of the south property 
line. The two smaller buildings are approximately 60 feet long by 40 feet wide and thirty 
feet north of the south property line. The larger building is approximately 100 feet wide 
by 120 feet deep. The original site plan proposed a total of four buildings with the larger 
building designed to allow for expansion to the north and another storage building to be 
located on the east side of the lot.  

 
 The proposed building is a different size than what was originally proposed and 

because of this the site plan review is required. The applicant is also proposing to 
extend the paving to the north building line of the proposed building as was shown on 
the original site plan.  
 
Site plan reviews are required for any new structures except single family residential so 
the proposed storage building will be required to go through the site plan review 
process. The zoning ordinance also states that site plan modifications, which is what is 
being proposed, shall be applied for and administered as required for new site plan. It 
should also be noted that the proposed building is different than the site plan that was 
approved in 2005. The site plan review requirements are listed under Section 152.031 
of the zoning ordinance. Site plan review requires the following submittal requirements. 

 
 (1)  Boundary survey of parcel including identification of all monuments. 
 (2)  Scaled location of all buildings, structures, driveways, sidewalks, trails, parking 

 stalls, and curbing. 
 (3)  Scaled identification of all setback dimensions from property lines. 
 (4)  Scaled locations of all existing and proposed utilities and easements. 
 (5)  Scaled depictions of floor plans for each story. 
 (6)  Scaled depictions of each building elevation and descriptions of exterior building 

 materials and color schemes. 
 (7)  Scaled site grading plans, including erosion and sedimentation control 

 mechanisms and procedures. 
 (8)  Scaled delineations of any shoreland, floodplain, or wetland areas on the site. 
 (9)  Identification of any floodplain or wetland encroachments and detailed mitigation 

 plans. 
 (10) Detailed landscape plans, illustrating size, types, and locations of all materials, a 

 description of site seeding or sodding, a description of the timetable for site 
 landscaping, and the identification of any irrigation systems. 

 (11)  Detailed descriptions of any site fencing, including type, location and height. 
 (12)  All plans shall be dated and shall bear the name(s) of the preparer(s), including 

 professional registrations or certifications when appropriate or required. 
 
Site plans can also expire and unless the City Council specifically approves a different 
time when action is officially taken on the request, site plans which have been 
approved shall expire without further action by the Planning Commission or the City 
Council within one year of the date the site plan is approved, unless the applicant has 
substantially started the construction of any building, structure, addition or alteration, or 
use requested as part of the approved site plan. The applicant shall have the right to 
submit an application for time extension before the expiration of the one year period 
and the applicant shall apply for an extension thereof by completing and submitting a 
request for extension, including the renewal fee as established by City Council 
resolution. The request for extension shall state facts showing a good faith attempt to 
complete any building, structure, addition or alteration, or use approved in the site plan. 
Said extension shall be presented to the Planning Commission for a recommendation 
and to the City Council for a decision. 
 
 
 

5



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 3 

Building  
Materials: The applicant will be required to satisfy the building design standards under section 

152.101 of the zoning ordinance. The following language applies. 
 

The purpose of establishing building design standards is to encourage development of 
aesthetically pleasing structures, to create minimum standards for non-residential 
design, and to protect the investments of non-residential building owners. 

 (B) Buildings located in the C/I District must include design treatments to all-metal-
exterior structures. Such treatments include but are not limited to steep-pitch 
roofs, awnings, wainscoting, color bands, shutters, extra windows, and 
combinations of other building materials. 

 
Under Section 152.060, the C/I district, the following language also applies to the 
building materials.  
 
Building Materials. Face materials, which rapidly deteriorate or become unsightly such 
as galvanized metal, unfinished structural clay shall not be used. 
Permitted Building Materials. Structural systems of all buildings shall be in compliance 
with the Uniform Building Code as adopted and in effect in the City of Mayer at the time 
of application for a building permit. The lower 30% of the exterior front of all buildings, 
as measured from ground elevation, facing the main access street shall consist of 
materials comparable in grade and quality to the following. 

(a)   Brick; 
(b)   Natural stone; 
(c)   Pre-cast concrete units and concrete block, provided that surfaces are molded, 

serrated or treated with a textured material in order to give the wall surface a 
three-dimensional character; 

(d)   Wood, provided surfaces are finished for exterior use and only woods of 
proven exterior durability such as cedar, redwood and cypress. 

Variance to 30% Requirement. The 30% requirement may be varied as determined 
appropriate to accommodate taller buildings or new buildings constructed next to or in 
the immediate vicinity of other buildings in order to provide a uniform and consistent 
effect for the area. 
Planning Commission Approval. If material other than those listed above or a variance 
for the 30% requirement is proposed, it shall be subject to review and approval by the 
Planning Commission. 

 
The proposed building does not satisfy the 30% requirement of materials such as brick, 
stone, etc. This will be a condition of approval to satisfy this requirement unless the 
Planning Commission gives a variance to the 30% requirement. In this case this may 
be applicable since the building is behind the main building located on the property and 
not entirely visible from Shimmcor Street. 

 
Off-Street  
Parking: The applicant is proposing a storage building which is considered other industry in the 

off-street parking section of the City zoning ordinance. Other industry requires three off-
street parking spaces per every 1,000 square feet. The proposed building is to be 40 
feet by 42 feet in size or 1,680 square feet, which would require five off-street parking 
spaces. The applicant is proposing to extend the pavement from the existing section to 
the north end of the building. This would allow for an addition five off-street parking 
spaces. 

 
Landscaping: Landscaping was installed with the original construction along Shimmcor Street, the 

south property line and the east property line. This landscaping is sufficient for the 
proposed accessory storage building site plan review. Landscaping in the C/I district  
should include the following. 

 

6



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 4 

 One over-story tree for every 30 feet of street frontage.  
 
The property in question has 400 feet of street frontage so fourteen trees would be 
required and more than fourteen trees are already located on the property so the 
landscaping requirements are satisfied. 

 
Outdoor  
Storage: All materials, supplies, merchandise or other similar matter not on display for direct 

sale, rental or lease to the ultimate consumer or user, except those items exempt under 
section 152.090 of the zoning ordinance, shall be stored within a completely enclosed 
building or within the confines of a 100% opaque wall or fence not less than six feet or 
more than eight feet in height. Such a screen wall or fence shall be designed and 
constructed as to be architecturally harmonious with the principal structure and located 
so as to not extend within twenty-five feet of any street. Landscaping (trees, shrubs, 
grass and other plantings) shall be on the right-of-way side of any screening or fencing. 
A screen planting may be substituted for a screen wall or fence at the discretion of the 
City Council, provided that any such screen planting shall fulfill the foregoing height and 
opacity requirements throughout each season of the year within 24 months after date of 
planting, and that no such screen planting shall be located across any existing 
easements. 

 
Surface Water  
Management: Stormwater management for the site is provided by a regional system constructed with 

the initial improvements for the Sell Commercial Industrial Park. The applicant is 
proposing to pave more surface on the lot but it is consistent with the original site plan 
as far as the impervious surface goes. The original site plan showed a total impervious 
surface are of 74.9% at full buildout, which is under the 85% requirement. The City 
Engineer will review and comment on any surface water management related 
questions. 

 
Signage: No signage is being proposed at this time.  
 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions: All general lighting employed on site must be directed away from adjoining properties. 

Direct or reflected glare from flood lights and spot lights, as differentiated from general 
illumination on the site, shall not be visible beyond the subject parcel. Noise and 
vibration generated from any use shall be in compliance with and regulated by the 
MPCA rules.  

 
CONDITIONS 
 
Site Plan Review 
The following conditions are recommended to be included if the Planning Commission recommends 
approval of the site plan. These conditions may be subject to modification depending upon the outcome 
at the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
1. Building Design Standards.  That the building design shall meet the requirements of section 152.060 

(C/I) Commercial/Industrial District (F) Special Requirements and 152.101 Building Design Standards 
of the zoning ordinance. The applicant shall add brick, stone, etc. to the front of the building facing 
Shimmcor Street to the lower 30% of the building unless the Planning Commission gives a variance 
to this requirement. 

 
2. Signage. That any proposed signage meet the standards set forth in Sections 152.120 through 

152.133 of the City Code and that all required sign permits are issued prior to installation of any 
signage.  

 
3. Lighting.  All general lighting employed on site must be directed away from adjoining properties. 

7



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 5 

Direct or reflected glare from flood lights and spot lights, as differentiated from general illumination on 
the site, shall not be visible beyond the subject parcel. 

 
4. Noise and Vibration. Noise and vibration generated from any use shall be in compliance with and 

regulated by the MPCA rules. 
 
5. Outdoor Storage. Any outdoor storage shall meet the requirements of section 152.090 Outdoor 

Storage and section 152.091 Screening the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
6. Stormwater Management. Stormwater shall be managed in accordance with the National Urban 

Runoff Program (NURP) standards for the design of new stormwater ponds. The provisions of the 
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency’s urban “best management practices,” titled “Protecting Water 
Quality in Urban Areas,” shall be used to review any proposed development in order to reduce non-
point source pollutant loadings in stormwater runoff. 

 
7. Building Permit.  All building permits that are required, shall be approved, paid for and issued prior to 

construction. 
 
8. Expiration. Unless the City Council specifically approves a different time when action is officially taken 

on the request, site plans which have been approved shall expire without further action by the 
Planning Commission or the City Council within one year of the date the site plan is approved, unless 
the applicant has substantially started the construction of any building, structure, addition or 
alteration, or use requested as part of the approved site plan. The applicant shall have the right to 
submit an application for time extension before the expiration of the one year period and the applicant 
shall apply for an extension thereof by completing and submitting a request for extension, including 
the renewal fee as established by City Council resolution. The request for extension shall state facts 
showing a good faith attempt to complete any building, structure, addition or alteration, or use 
approved in the site plan. Said extension shall be presented to the Planning Commission for a 
recommendation and to the City Council for a decision. 

 
9. City Engineer Review. The applicant shall satisfactorily address any issues raised by the City 

Engineer, if any. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED 
 
After review and discussion by the members of the Planning Commission, a motion is in order to 
recommend approval, denial or to table the site plan review. 
 
Possible action items - Site Plan Review  
1. Recommend approval of the site plan review subject to conditions. 
2. Table the site plan review to a date specific, and provide the applicant with direction on the issues 

that have been discussed. 
3. Recommend denial of the site plan review. 
 
If you have any questions relating to the site plan review prior to the Planning Commission meeting, 
please feel free to contact me at:  jandersonmdg@gmail.com or call direct at 952-855-4596. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 
 

John Anderson 
 
John Anderson, Associate 
Consulting Planner, City of Mayer 

8



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 6 

 
  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A - 505 Shimmcor Street Aerial Location Map 
Exhibit B - Site Plan 
Exhibit C - Renderings of the Proposed Building

9



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 7 

Exhibit A - 505 Shimmcor Street Aerial Location Map 
 

 
 

10



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 8 

Exhibit B - Site Plan 
 

11



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 9 

Exhibit C - Renderings of the Proposed Building Page 1 
 

12



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 10 

Exhibit C - Renderings of the Proposed Building Page 2 
 

13



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 11 

Exhibit C - Renderings of the Proposed Building Page 3  
 

14



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 12 

Exhibit C - Renderings of the Proposed Building Page 4 
 

15



 
25562 Willow Lane ● New Prague, MN 56071 ● (952) 758-7399 ● Fax: (952) 758-3711 

Email: jandersonmdg@gmail.com ● www.municipaldevelopmentgroup.com 
Page 13 

Exhibit C - Renderings of the Proposed Building Page 5 
 

 
  

16


	1 PC Agenda 5-7-19
	Mayer Community Center – Council Chambers - 413 Bluejay Avenue, Mayer, MN 55360
	PLANNING COMMISSION
	REGULAR MEETING
	Tuesday
	May 7, 2019
	6:30 PM

	2 PC Minutes 3-5-19 (1)
	City of Mayer
	Planning Commission
	Meeting Minutes
	Tuesday, March 5, 2019
	Commission Members Present: Council Liaison Tice Stieve-McPadden, Commissioners Les Hahn, Michael Sommerfeld, Don Wachholz, Barney Johnson and Patty Lanting.
	Commission Members Absent: Chairperson Tom Stifter.
	Others Present:  Eliceo Salomon-Vasquez, Jerry Vlaminck and Mayor Mike Dodge.
	Staff Present: Planning Consultant John Anderson of Municipal Development Group, LLC
	CALL MEETING TO ORDER.
	Meeting called to order at 6:33 PM by former Vice-Chairperson Hahn.
	ADOPT AGENDA.
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES.
	A motion to recommend approval of the text amendment was made by Commissioner Johnson and seconded by Commissioner Hahn. Motion carried 5/0.
	SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR AGAVE MEXICAN RESTAURANT LOCATED AT 421 ASH AVENUE.
	At 6:46 PM, Planning Consultant Anderson presented the information for the site plan review.  He stated that the biggest issue is the off-street parking and how that should be configured and if the proposed number of stalls is enough off-street parkin...
	Vice-Chairperson Lanting asked if any comments were received from the public.
	Planning Consultant Anderson stated no comments were received.
	Commissioner Hahn stated that he use to work in this building when it was a service station and garage and that the angled parking proposed on the north side of the building will not work and that those stalls will need to be perpendicular to the buil...
	A motion to recommend approval of the site plan was made by Commissioner Hahn and seconded by Commissioner Wachholz. The motion included changing condition number 6 to just require a trash dumpster to be located on site and to be accessible and adding...
	NEXT MEETING.
	Next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, April 2, 2019.
	COMMISSIONERS REPORT.
	ADJOUNRNMENT.

	3 PC MEMO Site Plan Accessory Building 505 Shimmcor 4-24-19



